ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AS OF AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2019

WITH INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

.



.

·

. .

Annual Financial Statements as of and for the Year Ended December 31, 2019 with Supplementary Information Schedules

TABLE OF CONTENTS

| | <u>Statement</u> | Page |
|--|------------------|-------|
| Independent Auditor's Report | | 1-3 |
| Section I – Required Supplementary Information | | |
| Management's Discussion and Analysis | | 4-6 |
| Section II – Basic Financial Statements | | |
| Government-Wide Financial Statements: | | |
| Statement of Net Position | А | 7 |
| Statement of Activities | В | 8 |
| Fund Financial Statements: | | |
| Balance Sheet – Governmental Fund | С | 9 |
| Reconciliation of the Balance Sheet – Governmental Fund to the Statement of Net Position | D | 10 |
| Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances – Governmental Fund | E | 11 |
| Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances – Governmental Fund to the Statement of Activities | F | 12 |
| Notes to the Financial Statements | | 13-22 |
| Section III – Required Supplementary Information | | |
| Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance – Budget and Actual – Governmental Fund | 1 | 23 |
| Notes to the Required Supplementary Information | | 24 |
| Schedule of the Library's Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability | | 25 |
| Schedule of the Library's Contributions | | 26 |

Annual Financial Statements as of and for the Year Ended December 31, 2019 with Supplementary Information Schedules

.

| TABLE OF CONTENTS | Statement | <u>Page</u> |
|---|-----------|-------------|
| Section IV - Other Information | | |
| Schedule of Compensation, Reimbursements, Benefits, and Other Payments to Agency Head or Chief Executive Officer | | 27 |
| Section V – Reports Required by Government Auditing Standards | | |
| Independent Auditor's Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting and on Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in Accordance with <i>Government Auditing Standards</i> | | 28-29 |
| Section VI – Schedule of Findings | | |
| Schedule of Findings | | 30 |
| Schedule of Prior Year Audit Findings | 2 | 31 |
| Current Year Audit Findings | 3 | 32 |

1



209 N. Commerce St. Natchez, MS 39120 P. O. Box 1027 Natchez, MS 39121 Tel: 601-442-7411 Fax: 601-442-8551 2120 Forsythe Ave. Monroe, LA 71201 P. O. Box 4550 Monroe, LA 71211 Tel: 318-323-4481 Fax: 318-323-2188

www.silassimmons.com

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

Board of Control Concordia Parish Library Ferriday, Louisiana

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of Concordia Parish Library (the Library), a component unit of the Concordia Parish Police Jury, as of and for the year ended December 31, 2019, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the Library's basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in *Government Auditing Standards* issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinions.

Opinions

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial position of the governmental activities, the major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of Concordia Parish Library as of December 31, 2019, and the respective changes in financial position for the year then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Other Matters

Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management's discussion and analysis, budgetary comparison information, the schedule of the Library's proportionate share of the net pension liability, and the schedule of the Library's contributions, on pages 4 through 6 and pages 23 through 26, be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with management's responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively comprise Concordia Parish Library's basic financial statements. The Schedule of Compensation, Reimbursements, Benefits, and Other Payments to Agency Head or Chief Executive Officer, described in the accompanying table of contents, is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of the basic financial statements.

The Schedule of Compensation, Benefits, and Other Payments to Agency Head or Chief Executive Officer is the responsibility of management and was derived from, and relates directly to, the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the Schedule of Compensation, Benefits, and Other Payments to Agency Head or Chief Executive Officer is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with *Government Auditing Standards*, we have also issued our report dated March 25, 2020, on our consideration of the Library's internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements, and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with *Government Auditing Standards* in considering the Library's internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

This report is intended for the information of the Members of the Library Board, the Concordia Parish Police Jury, and the Legislative Auditor of the State of Louisiana and is not intended to be, and should not be, used by anyone other than these specified parties. Under Louisiana Revised Statute 24:513, this report is distributed by the Legislative Auditor as a public document.

3

Silas Simmons, LLP

1

Natchez, Mississippi March 25, 2020

SECTION I REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

:

·

. . .

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2019

INTRODUCTION

This Management's Discussion and Analysis of Concordia Parish Library's (the Library) financial performance provides an overall narrative view of the Library's financial activities for the year ended December 31, 2019, as compared to 2018. The intent of this discussion and analysis is to look at the Library's performance as a whole; readers should also review the notes to the financial statements to enhance their understanding of the Library's financial performance.

Concordia Parish Library's main office is located on 3rd Street in Ferriday, Louisiana in Concordia Parish. The Library provides library services to approximately 20,000 customers and is a component of the Concordia Parish Police Jury.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

- Assets exceeded liabilities by \$9,010,039 and \$8,753,824 at December 31, 2019 and 2018, respectively.
- Total revenues exceeded expenditures by \$256,215 and \$296,822 at December 31, 2019 and 2018, respectively.
- The Library had a net investment in capital assets of \$3,532,365 and \$3,631,644 at December 31, 2019 and 2018, respectively.
- The total payroll was \$393,714 and \$366,787 for 2019 and 2018, respectively.

OVERVIEW OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to Concordia Parish Library's basic financial statements. The Library's basic financial statements comprise three components: (1) government-wide financial statements, (2) fund financial statements, and (3) notes to the financial statements.

Government-wide financial statements. The government-wide financial statements are designed to provide readers with a broad overview of the Library's finances in a manner similar to a private-sector business.

The statement of net position presents information on all of the Library's assets and liabilities, with the difference between the two reported as net position. Over time, increases or decreases in net position may serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial position of the Library is improving or deteriorating.

The statement of activities presents information showing how the Library's net assets changed during the most recent year.

The government-wide financial statements can be found on pages 7 through 8 of this report.

Fund financial statements. A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over resources that have been segregated for specific activities or objectives.

The basic governmental fund financial statements can be found on pages 9 through 12 of this report.

Notes to the financial statements. The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full understanding of the data provided in the fund financial statements. The notes to the financial statements can be found on pages 13 through 22 of this report.

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2019

FUND FINANCIAL ANALYSIS

٠

Net position for the period ending December 31, 2019 and 2018

| | | 2019 | | 2018 |
|--|-----------|------------------|-----------|------------------|
| Assets | | | | |
| Current assets | \$ | 5,521,095 | \$ | 5,122,146 |
| Noncurrent assets | | <u>3,532,365</u> | | <u>3,667,385</u> |
| Total assets | \$ | 9,053,460 | <u>\$</u> | <u>8,789,531</u> |
| Deferred outflows of resources | <u>\$</u> | 188,877 | <u>\$</u> | 79,004 |
| Liabilities and Net Position | | | | |
| Current liabilities | \$ | 323 | \$ | 664 |
| Noncurrent liabilities | | 218,756 | | 7,594 |
| Total liabilities | <u>\$</u> | 219,079 | <u>\$</u> | 8,258 |
| Deferred inflows of resources | <u>\$</u> | 13,219 | <u>\$</u> | 106,453 |
| Net Position | | | | |
| Investment in capital assets, net of related debt | \$ | 3,532,365 | \$ | 3,631,644 |
| Unrestricted | | 5,477,674 | | 5,122,180 |
| Total net position | <u>\$</u> | 9.010.039 | <u>\$</u> | 8,753,824 |
| The following is a summary of the statement of activities: | | | | |
| | | 2019 | | 2018 |
| Revenues | | | | |
| Ad valorem taxes | \$ | 1,141,579 | \$ | 1,130,750 |
| General revenues | | 139,048 | | 95,925 |
| Other | <u></u> | 333 | <u> </u> | 343 |
| Total revenues | <u>\$</u> | 1,280,960 | <u>\$</u> | 1,227,018 |
| Expenses | | | | |
| Operating expenses | <u>\$</u> | <u>1,024,745</u> | <u>\$</u> | <u>930,196</u> |
| Total expenses | <u>\$</u> | 1,024,745 | <u>\$</u> | 930,196 |
| Increase in net position | \$ | 256,215 | \$ | 296,822 |
| Net position, beginning of year | | 8,753,824 | | 8,457,002 |
| Net position, end of year | \$ | 9,010,039 | \$ | 8,753,824 |
| - | | | | |

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2019

FUND FINANCIAL ANALYSIS (continued)

The notes to the financial statements should be read to have a full understanding of the data in the governmentwide financial statements.

CAPITAL ASSETS AND DEBT

As of December 31, 2019, the Library had \$3,532,365 invested in capital assets net of accumulated depreciation of \$1,332,950. During the year, expenditures of \$61,011 were made to acquire capital assets.

As of December 31, 2019, the Library had no outstanding long-term debt.

During the year, the Library acquired the following capital assets:

| Clayton furniture and fixtures | \$ 3,480 |
|--------------------------------|--------------|
| Computers and copier | 20,430 |
| Ferriday renovation | 37,101 |
| - | \$ 61,011 |

COMMENT ON THE BUDGET

The Library budgeted revenues of \$1,165,576 and expenditures of \$1,207,600 during the year. Actual revenues (budget basis) were \$1,185,161 and actual expenditures (budget basis) were \$881,364.

LIBRARY INFORMATION

Concordia Parish Library Board is in the planning stage of renovating its buildings. The Vidalia Library's renovation and expansion is complete. The Clayton Library is complete now so the savings is designated for the Ferriday Library. The Library administration has saved funds for the renovation and a new bookmobile. The Ferriday project is estimated at \$1,700,000, plus \$200,000 for furniture. The project could cost more because of the need for maintenance work to the 1950 structure, such as window replacement and caulking, exterior paint, and other costs, as well as the moving of a wall and adding additional spaces. The architect from Dallas will be the lead architect and the discussion of the Library patrons' needs and ease of use is in the forefront.

REQUEST FOR INFORMATION

This financial report is designed to provide citizens, taxpayers, customers, and creditors with a general overview of the Library's finances and to show the Library's accountability for the money it receives. Any questions about this report or requests for additional information may be directed to Amanda Taylor, Director of the Library, at (318) 757-3550.

SECTION II BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

.

,

,

,

GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

--

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

DECEMBER 31, 2019

ASSETS

| Cash and cash equivalents Receivables Capital assets, net |] | 4,451,565 1,069,530 3, <u>532,365</u> |
|---|-----------|---|
| Total assets | <u>\$</u> | <u>9,053,460</u> |
| DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES | | |
| Deferred outflows of resources | \$ | <u>188,877</u> |
| LIABILITIES | | |
| Accounts payable Accrued compensated absences Net pension liability | \$ | 323 6,474 <u>212,282</u> |
| Total liabilities | <u>\$</u> | 219,079 |
| DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES | | |
| Deferred inflows of resources | \$ | 13,219 |
| NET POSITION | | |
| Invested in capital assets Unrestricted | | 3,532,365 5,477,674 |
| Total net position | <u>\$</u> | 9 <u>,010,039</u> |

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2019

| EXPENDITURES/EXPENSES | | |
|---|-----------|---|
| Library services | \$ | 1,024,745 |
| PROGRAM REVENUES | | |
| Fees, fines, and other charges for services | | 333 |
| Net program expense | <u>\$</u> | 1,024,412 |
| GENERAL REVENUES | | |
| Ad valorem taxes State revenue sharing Interest earned Other revenue | \$ | 1,141,579 51,558 73,462 14,028 |
| Total general revenues | <u>\$</u> | 1,280,627 |
| Changes in net position | \$ | 256,215 |
| NET POSITION | | |
| Beginning of year | | 8,753,824 |
| End of year | <u>\$</u> | 9,010,039 |

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this financial statement.

FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

• .

.

BALANCE SHEET - GOVERNMENTAL FUND

DECEMBER 31, 2019

ASSETS

| Cash and cash equivalents Receivables (net of allowances for uncollectibles) | \$ | 4,451,565 1,069,530 |
|---|-----------|------------------------|
| Total assets | <u>\$</u> | <u>5,521,095</u> |
| LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES | | |
| Liabilities Accounts payable Total liabilities | <u>\$</u> | <u>323</u> 323 |
| Fund balance Unassigned | <u>\$</u> | 5,520,772 |
| Total liabilities and fund balances | <u>\$</u> | <u>5,521,095</u> |

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this financial statement.

ŗ

RECONCILIATION OF THE BALANCE SHEET – GOVERNMENTAL FUND TO THE STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

DECEMBER 31, 2019

| Total fund balance – governmental fund (Statement C) | \$ | 5,520,772 |
|---|-----------|-----------|
| Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of net position (government-wide financial statements) are different because: | | |
| Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources and, therefore, are not reported in governmental funds. | | |
| Capital assets\$ 4,865,315Less accumulated depreciation(1,332,950) | | 3,532,365 |
| Deferred outflows and inflows are not financial resources or currently payable | | |
| Deferred outflows\$188,877Deferred inflows(13,219) | | 175,658 |
| Long-term liabilities are not due and payable in the current year and, therefore, are not reported in the governmental funds: | | |
| Net pension liability\$ (212,282)Accrued compensated absences liability(6,474) | | (218,756) |
| Total net position of governmental activities (Statement A) | <u>\$</u> | 9,010,039 |

.

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES – GOVERNMENTAL FUND

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2019

REVENUES

| Ad valorem taxes | \$ | 1,141,579 |
|--|-----------|-------------------------|
| Intergovernmental revenues: State revenue sharing Fines Interest earned | | 51,558 333 73,462 |
| Other revenues | | 14,028 |
| Total revenues | <u>\$</u> | 1,280,960 |
| EXPENDITURES | | |
| General government Capital outlay | \$ | 820,659 61,011 |
| Total expenditures | <u>\$</u> | 881,670 |
| Excess of revenues over expenditures | \$ | 399,290 |
| Fund balance – beginning of year | | 5,121,482 |
| Fund balance – end of year | <u>\$</u> | 5,520,772 |

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this financial statement.

RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - GOVERNMENTAL FUND TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2019

| Net change in fund balances – total governmental fund (Statement E) | | | \$ | 399,290 |
|---|----------|-----------|-----------|----------|
| Amounts reported for <i>governmental activities</i> in the statement of activities (government-wide financial statements) are different because: | | | | |
| Decrease in accrued compensated absences | \$ | 1,120 | | |
| Net changes in pension related items | | 37,670 | | 38,790 |
| Capital outlays are reported in governmental funds as expenditures. However, in the statement of activities, the cost of those assets is allocated over their estimated useful lives as depreciation expense. This is the amount by which capital outlays exceeded depreciation expense in the period: | | | | |
| Capital outlay | \$ | 61,011 | | |
| Depreciation expense | | (160,290) | | (99,279) |
| Net pension expense is reported in governmental funds as expenditures as they are paid; however, in the statement of activities, the net pension expense is reported according to estimates required by GASB 68: | | | | |
| Pension expenses paid | \$ | 34,395 | | |
| Pension expenses per GASB 68 | <u> </u> | (116,981) | | (82,586) |
| Change in net position of governmental activities (Statement B) | | | <u>\$</u> | 256,215 |

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AS OF AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2019

INTRODUCTION

- 1. Concordia Parish Library has been a component unit of the Concordia Parish Police Jury since its inception in 1954. Administration and accounting functions for funds of the Library were transferred from the Concordia Parish Police Jury to the Concordia Parish Library Board of Control effective July 1, 2005, by R.S. 25:215(b)(15).
- 2. The purpose of Concordia Parish Library (the Library) is to provide Library services to the citizens of Concordia Parish.
- 3. The Library consists of eight board members appointed by the Concordia Parish Police Jury. Members serve five-year terms without pay.
- 4. The Library has four service outlets which include branches in Ferriday, Clayton, Vidalia, and one Bookmobile.
- 5. The Library serves approximately 20,000 people.
- 6. The Library has eight full-time and nine part-time employees.

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

A. Basis of Presentation

The accompanying basic financial statements of Concordia Parish Library have been prepared in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted standard-setting body for establishing governmental accounting and financial reporting principles. The accompanying basic financial statements have been prepared in conformity with GASB Statement 34, *Basic Financial Statements and Management's Discussion and Analysis – for State and Local Governments,* issued in June 1999.

B. Reporting Entity

The Library does not possess all the corporate powers necessary to make it a legally separate entity from the Concordia Parish Police Jury, which holds the Library's corporate powers. For this reason, the Library is a component unit of the Concordia Parish Police Jury, the financial reporting entity.

The accompanying financial statements present information only on the funds maintained by the Library and do not present information on the Police Jury, the general government services provided by that governmental unit, or the other governmental units that comprise the financial reporting entity.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AS OF AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2019

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

C. Fund Accounting

The Library uses funds to maintain its financial records during the year. Fund accounting is designed to demonstrate legal compliance and to aid management by segregating transactions related to certain Library functions and activities. A fund is defined as a separate fiscal and accounting entity with a self-balancing set of accounts.

Governmental Funds

Governmental funds account for all or most of the Library's general activities. These funds focus on the sources, uses, and balances of current financial resources. Expendable assets are assigned to the various governmental funds according to the purposes for which they may be used. Current liabilities are assigned to the fund from which they will be paid. The difference between a governmental fund's assets and liabilities is reported as fund balance. In general, fund balance represents the accumulated expendable resources that may be used to finance future period programs or operations of the Library. The following is a description of the Library's fund:

General Fund

The primary operating fund of the Library accounts for all financial resources, except those required to be accounted for in other funds. The General Fund is available for any purpose provided it is expended or transferred in accordance with state and federal laws and according to Library policy.

D. Measurement Focus/Basis of Accounting

The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting, as are the proprietary fund financial statements. Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Property taxes are recognized as revenues in the year for which they are levied. Grants and similar items are recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility requirements imposed by the provider have been met.

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized as soon as they are both measureable and available. Revenues are considered to be available when they are collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the current period. For this purpose, the government considers revenues to be available if they are collected within 60 days of the end of the current period.

Expenditures are recorded when the related fund liability is incurred, except for interest and principal payments on general long-term debt, which are recognized when due, and certain compensated absences and claims and judgments, which are recognized when the obligations are expected to be liquidated with expendable available financial resources.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AS OF AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2019

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

D. Measurement Focus/Basis of Accounting (continued)

Government-Wide Financial Statements

The page labeled Statement of Net Position (Statement A) and the page labeled Statement of Activities (Statement B) display information about the Library as a whole. These statements include all the financial activities of the Library. Information contained in these statements reflect the economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting.

E. Budgets

The Library uses the following budget practices:

- 1. The Library Director prepares a proposed budget and submits same to the Library Board no later than 15 days prior to the beginning of each year.
- 2. A summary of the proposed budget is published and the public notified that the proposed budget is available for public inspection. At the same time, a public hearing is called.
- 3. A public hearing is held on the proposed budget at least ten days after publication of the call for the hearing.
- 4. After the holding of the public hearing and completion of all action necessary to finalize and implement the budget, the budget is adopted through passage of an ordinance prior to the commencement of the year for which the budget is being adopted.
- 5. Budgetary amendments involving the transfer of funds from one department, program, or function to another, or involving increases in expenditures resulting from revenues exceeding amounts estimated, require the approval of the Library Board.
- 6. All budgetary appropriations lapse at the end of each year.
- 7. Budgets are adopted on a cash basis. Budget amounts are as originally adopted, or as amended from time to time by the Library Board.

F. Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash includes amounts in demand deposits and time deposits. Under state law, the Library may deposit funds in demand deposits, interest-bearing demand deposits, or time deposits with state banks organized under Louisiana law or any other state of the United States, or under the laws of the United States.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AS OF AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2019

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

G. Capital Assets

Capital assets are capitalized at historical cost. Donated assets are recorded as capital assets at their estimated fair market value at the date of donation. The Library maintains a threshold level of \$1,000 or more for capitalizing capital assets. These financial statements include capital assets acquired subsequent to December 31, 2004. All capital assets owned prior to January 1, 2005, are accounted for by the Concordia Parish Police Jury.

Capital assets are recorded in the Statement of Net Position and Statement of Activities. Since surplus assets are sold for an immaterial amount when declared as no longer needed for public purposes, no salvage value is taken into consideration for depreciation purposes. All capital assets, other than land, are depreciated using the straight-line method over the following useful lives:

| Description | Estimated Lives |
|------------------------|-----------------|
| Furniture and fixtures | 3-5 years |
| Vehicles | 15 years |

H. Compensated Absences

The Library has implemented GASB Statement 16, *Accounting for Compensated Absences*. Under GASB Statement 16, a liability for unpaid vacation that is attributable to services already rendered and that is not contingent on a specific event that is outside the control of the employer and employee is accrued as employees earn the rights to benefits.

The entire compensated absence liability is reported on the government-wide financial statements. For governmental fund financial statements, the current portion of unpaid compensated absences is the amount that is normally expected to be paid using expendable available financial resources.

I. Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues, expenditures, and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

J. Net Position/Fund Balances

In the statements of net position, the difference between a government's assets and liabilities is recorded as net position. The two components of net position are as follows:

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AS OF AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2019

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

J. Net Position/Fund Balances (continued)

Invested in Capital Assets, Net of Related Debt – This category records capital assets of accumulated depreciation and reduced by any outstanding balances of bonds, mortgages, notes, or other borrowings attributable to the acquisition, construction, or improvement of capital assets.

Unrestricted – This category represents net position not appropriable for expenditures or legally segregated for a specific future use.

Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources

The statement of financial position will often report a separate section for deferred outflows and/or deferred inflows of financial resources. Deferred outflows of resources represent a consumption of net position that applies to a future period(s) and so will not be recognized as an outflow of resources (expense/expenditure) until then. Deferred inflows of resources represent an acquisition of net position that applies to a future period(s) and so will not be recognized as an inflow of resources until that time.

NOTE 2 – LEVIED TAXES

The following is a summary of authorized and levied property taxes:

| | Authorized | Levied | Expiration |
|-------------------|----------------|----------------|------------|
| | <u>Millage</u> | <u>Millage</u> | Date |
| Parish-wide taxes | 8.0 | 8.0 | 2028 |

The following is a summary of Concordia Parish Library's ad valorem taxes assessed and collected (cash basis) and the taxes receivable at December 31, 2019:

| | Taxes | Taxes | Uncollected |
|-------------------|------------------|-------------------|---------------------|
| | Assessed | Collected | December31, 2019 |
| Parish-wide taxes | <u>1,154,236</u> | <u>\$ 150,864</u> | <u>\$ 1,003,372</u> |

Tarras

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AS OF AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2019

NOTE 3 - CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

At December 31, 2018, the Library had cash and cash equivalents (book balances) as follows:

| Demand deposits Time deposits | ` | \$ | 311,565 4,140,000 |
|----------------------------------|---|-----------|----------------------|
| Total | | <u>\$</u> | 4,451,565 |

These deposits are stated at cost, which approximates market. Under state law, these deposits (or the resulting bank balances) must be secured by federal deposit insurance or the pledge of securities owned by the fiscal agent bank. The market value of the pledged securities, plus the federal deposit insurance must at all times equal the amount on deposit with the fiscal agent. These securities are in the name of the pledging fiscal agent bank in a holding or custodial bank that is mutually acceptable to both parties.

At December 31, 2019, the Library has \$4,458,050 in deposits (collected bank balances). These deposits are secured from risk by \$500,000 of federal deposit insurance and \$5,525,123 of pledged securities held by the custodial bank in the name of the fiscal agent bank.

Even though the pledged securities are considered uncollateralized (Category 3) under the provisions of GASB Statement 3, R.S. 39:1229 imposes a statutory requirement on the custodial bank to advertise and sell the pledged securities within ten days of being notified by the Library that the fiscal agent has failed to pay deposited funds upon demand.

NOTE 4 - RECEIVABLES

The receivables at December 31, 2019, are as follows:

| Class of Receivable | Total |
|---|----------------------------------|
| Ad valorem taxes State revenue sharing Accrued interest | \$ 1,003,372 38,800 27,358 |
| Total | <u>\$ 1,069,530</u> |

These accounts receivable are considered to be 100% collectible and no provision for bad debts has been made by the Library.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AS OF AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2019

NOTE 5 - CAPITAL ASSETS

Capital assets and depreciation activity as of and for the year ended December 31, 2019, are as follows:

| | | Balance 12/31/18 | А | dditions | Retir | ements | | Balance 12/31/19 |
|--|-----------|---------------------|-----------|------------------|-----------|-----------------------------|-----------|---------------------|
| Capital assets being depreciated | | | | | | | | |
| Buildings | \$ | 3,990,193 | \$ | - | \$ | - | \$ | 3,990,193 |
| Bookmobile | | 94,952 | | - | | - | | 94,952 |
| Equipment | | 719,159 | | 23,910 | | - | | 743,069 |
| Construction in progress | | | | 37,101 | | | | <u>37,101</u> |
| Total capital assets being depreciated | <u>\$</u> | 4,804,304 | <u>\$</u> | 61,011 | \$ | _ | <u>\$</u> | 4,865,315 |
| Less accumulated depreciation: | | | | | | | | |
| Buildings | \$ | (568,828) | \$ | (126,375) | \$ | - | \$ | (695,203) |
| Bookmobile | | (88,135) | | (6,330) | | - | | (94,465) |
| Equipment | | (515,697) | | (27,585) | | | | (543,282) |
| Total accumulated depreciated | <u>\$</u> | (1,172,660) | <u>\$</u> | (160,290) | <u>\$</u> | | <u>\$</u> | (1,332,950) |
| Total capital assets, net | <u>\$</u> | 3.631,644 | <u>\$</u> | <u>(99,279</u>) | <u>\$</u> | ۔ مر دیکھر ہے | <u>\$</u> | 3,532,365 |

NOTE 6 - ACCOUNTS, SALARIES, AND OTHER PAYABLES

The accounts, salaries, and other payables at December 31, 2019, are as follows:

| Other payables | <u>\$</u> | 323 |
|----------------|-----------|-----|
| Total | <u>\$</u> | 323 |

NOTE 7 - PENSION PLAN

Plan Description. Substantially all employees of Concordia Parish Library are members of the Parochial Employees' Retirement System of Louisiana (System), a cost-sharing, multiple-employer, defined benefit pension plan administered by a separate board of trustees. The System is composed of two distinct plans, Plan A and Plan B, with separate assets and benefit provisions. All employees of the Library are members of Plan A.

All permanent employees working at least 28 hours per week who are paid wholly, or in part, from parish funds and all elected parish officials are eligible to participate in the System. Under Plan A, employees who retire at or after age 60 with at least 10 years of creditable service, at or after age 55 with at least 25 years of creditable service, or at any age with at least 30 years of creditable service are entitled to a retirement benefit, payable monthly for life, equal to 3% of their final-average salary for each year of creditable service. However, for those employees who were members of the supplementary plan only before January 1, 1980, the benefit is equal to 1% of final average salary plus \$24 for each year of supplementary-plan-only service earned before January 1, 1980.

Final average salary is the employee's average salary over the 36 consecutive or joined months that produce the highest average. Employees who terminate with at least the amount of creditable service stated above and do not withdraw their employee contributions may retire at the ages specified and receive the benefit accrued to their date of termination. The System also provides death and disability benefits. Benefits are established or amended by state statute.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AS OF AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2019

NOTE 7 - PENSION PLAN (continued)

The System issues an annual publicly available financial report that includes financial statements and required supplementary information for the System. That report may be obtained by writing to the Parochial Employees' Retirement System, Post Office Box 14619, Baton Rouge, Louisiana 70898-4619, or by calling (504) 928-1361.

Funding Policy. Under Plan A, members are required by state statute to contribute 9.5% of their annual covered salary, and the Library is required to contribute at an actuarially determined rate. The current rate is 11.5% of annual covered payroll. Contributions to the System also include one-fourth of 1% (except Orleans and East Baton Rouge parishes) of the taxes shown to be collectible by the tax rolls of each parish. These tax dollars are divided between Plan A and Plan B based proportionately on the salaries of the active members of each plan.

The contribution requirements of plan members and the Library are established and may be amended by state statute. As provided by R.S. 11:103, the employer contributions are determined by actuarial valuation and are subject to change each year based on the results of the valuation for the prior fiscal year. The Library's contributions to the System under Plan A for the year ending December 31, 2019, were \$34,395, equal to the required contributions for the year.

NOTE 8 - PLAN DESCRIPTION AND BENEFITS

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions

At December 31, 2019, the Library reported a liability of \$212,282 for its proportionate share of the net pension asset. The net pension asset was measured as of December 31, 2018, and the total pension asset used to calculate the net pension asset was determined by an actuarial valuation as of that date. The Library's proportion of the net pension asset was based on a projection of the Library's long-term share of contributions to the pension plan relative to the projected contributions of all participating entities, actuarially determined. At December 31, 2018, the Library's proportion was .047829%.

For the year ended December 31, 2019, the Library recognized pension expense of \$82,492, plus employer's amortization of change in proportionate share and differences between employer contributions and proportionate share of contributions, \$34,489. At December 31, 2019, the Library reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions from the following sources:

| | | Deferred Outflows of Resources | | ed Inflows esources |
|--|-----------|-----------------------------------|-----------|------------------------|
| Differences between expected and actual experience | \$ | - | \$ | 12,933 |
| Changes of assumptions | | 53,078 | | - |
| Net difference between projected and actual | | | | |
| earnings on pension plan investments | | 101,620 | | |
| Changes in proportion and differences between Library | | | | |
| contributions and proportionate share of contributions | 1 | 39 | | 286 |
| Library contributions subsequent to the measurement date | | 34,140 | | <u> </u> |
| Total | <u>\$</u> | 188,877 | <u>\$</u> | 13,219 |

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AS OF AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2019

NOTE 8 - PLAN DESCRIPTION AND BENEFITS (continued)

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions (continued)

\$13,219 was reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions resulting from Library contributions subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability in the year ended December 31, 2019. Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions will be recognized in pension expense as follows:

| Year ended June 30: | , | |
|---------------------|------------------|---|
| 2019 | \$ 31,05 | 5 |
| 2020 | 31,05 | 5 |
| 2021 | 27,95 | 5 |
| 2022 | 17,71 | 9 |
| Total | <u>\$ 107,78</u> | 4 |

Actuarial assumptions. The total pension asset in the December 31, 2018, actuarial valuation was determined using the following actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods included in the measurement:

| Valuation date Actuarial cost method Actuarial assumptions: | December 31, 2018 Entry age normal |
|---|--|
| Investment rate of return | 6.50%, net of investment expense, including inflation |
| Expected remaining service lives | 4 years |
| Projected salary increase | 4.75% (2.35% merit/2.40% inflation) |
| Cost-of-living adjustments | The present value of future retirement benefits is based on benefits currently being paid by the System and includes previously granted cost-of-living increases. The present values do not include provisions for potential future increases not yet authorized by the Board of Trustees. |
| Mortality | RP-2010 Employee Mortality Table was selected for active members. RP-2010 Healthy Annuitant Mortality Table was selected for healthy annuitants and beneficiaries. RP-2010 Disabled Lives Mortality Table was selected for disabled annuitants. |
| Inflation rate | 2.40% |

The long-term expected real rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a triangulation method which integrated the CAPM pricing model (top-down), a treasury yield curve approach (bottom-up), and an equity building-block model (bottom-up). Risk return and correlations are projected on a forward-looking basis in equilibrium, in which best-estimates of expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net of pension plan investment expense, and inflation) are developed for each major asset class. These rates are combined to produce the long-term expected rate of return by weighting the expected future real rates of return by the target asset allocation percentage and by adding expected inflation of 2.00% and an adjustment for the effect of rebalancing/diversification. The resulting expected long-term rate of return is 7.43%. Best estimates of geometric real rates of return for each major asset class included in the System's target asset allocation as of December 31, 2018, are summarized in the following table:

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AS OF AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2019

NOTE 8 - PLAN DESCRIPTION AND BENEFITS (continued)

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions (continued)

| | Target Asset | Long-Term Expected Portfolio Real Rate |
|------------------------------------|--------------|---|
| Asset Class | Allocation | of Return |
| Fixed income | 35% | 1.22% |
| Equity | 52% | 3.45% |
| Alternatives | 11% | 0.65% |
| Real assets | 2% | 0.11% |
| Totals | 100% | 5.43% |
| Inflation | | 2.00% |
| Expected arithmetic nominal return | | 7.43% |

Sensitivity to Changes in Discount Rate. The following presents the net pension (asset) liability of the participating employers calculated using the discount rate of 6.50%, as well as what the employers' net pension liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is one percentage point lower, 5.50%, or one percentage point higher, 7.50%, than the current rate.

| | Char | Changes in Discount Rate 2018 | | | | | | |
|-----------------------|------------------|-------------------------------|------------------|--|--|--|--|--|
| | 1% | 1% Current | | | | | | |
| | Decrease | Discount Rate | Increase | | | | | |
| | (5.50%) | (6.50%) | (7.50%) | | | | | |
| Net pension liability | <u>\$452,442</u> | <u>\$ 212,282</u> | <u>\$ 12,923</u> | | | | | |

NOTE 9 - RISK MANAGEMENT

The Library is exposed to certain risks of losses such as property damage, liability issues, and other potential losses that may occur. The Library minimizes its losses by purchase of commercial insurance. The Library's exposure over the amount of insurance is considered to be immaterial.

SECTION III REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

•

i

•

.

i

.

÷

.

CONCORDIA PARISH LIBRARY (A Component Unit of the Concordia Parish Police Jury) FERRIDAY, LOUISIANA

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE BUDGET AND ACTUAL - GOVERNMENTAL FUND

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2019

-

| | (| Budgeted Amounts FinalFinal | | Actual Amounts Budget Basis | | Differences Over/ <u>(Under)</u> | | |
|--|-----------------|---|-----------|---|-----------------|--|-----------|--------------------------------------|
| REVENUES | | | | | | | | |
| Ad valorem taxes State revenue sharing Fines Interest earned Other revenue | \$ | 1,062,626 39,000 300 52,000 11,650 | \$ | 1,062,626 .39,000 300 52,000 11,650 | \$ | 1,071,400 39,168 333 60,232 14,028 | \$ | 8,774 168 33 8,232 2,378 |
| Total revenues | <u>\$</u> | 1,165,576 | \$ | 1,165,576 | \$ | 1,185,161 | \$ | 19,585 |
| EXPENDITURES General government Capital outlay Total expenditures | \$ <u>\$</u> | 1,207,600 <u>118,000</u> <u>1,325,600</u> | \$ | 1,207,600 <u>118,000</u> <u>1,325,600</u> | \$ <u>\$</u> | 820,353 <u>61,011</u> 881,364 | \$ | (387,247) (56,989) (444,236) |
| EXCESS (DEFICIT) OF REVENUES OVER EXPENDITURES | \$ | (160,024) | \$ | (160,024) | \$ | 303,797 | \$ | (424,651) |
| Fund balance (cash basis) - beginning of year | | 4,148,415 | | 4,148,415 | | 4,148,415 | | |
| Fund balance (cash basis) - end of year | <u>\$</u> | 3,988,391 | <u>\$</u> | <u>3,988,391</u> | <u>\$</u> | 4,452,212 | <u>\$</u> | <u>(424,651</u>) |

.

NOTES TO THE REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2019

NOTES TO THE REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

Budgetary Comparison Schedule

1. Basis of Presentation

The Budgetary Comparison Schedule presents the original legally adopted budget, the final legally adopted budget, the actual data on the cash basis, and variances between the final budget and the actual data.

2. Budget/GAAP Reconciliation

The major differences between the budgetary basis and the GAAP basis are:

- a. Revenues are recorded when received in cash (budgetary) as opposed to when susceptible to accrual (GAAP).
- b. Expenditures are recorded when paid in cash (budgetary) as opposed to when susceptible to accrual (GAAP).

The following schedule reconciles net change in fund balances on the budgetary basis schedules to the GAAP basis financial statements for the General Fund:

| Net change in fund balance – budget basis | \$ | 399,290 |
|---|-----------|-----------------|
| Decrease | | (05.700) |
| Net adjustments for revenue accruals | | (95,799) 306 |
| Net adjustments for expenditure accruals | | 306 |
| Net change in fund balance – GAAP basis | <u>\$</u> | 303,797 |

SCHEDULE OF THE LIBRARY'S PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF THE NET PENSION LIABILITY PAROCHIAL EMPLOYEES' RETIREMENT SYSTEM OF LOUISIANA

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2019

| | | 2015 | 2016 | 2017 | 2018 | 2019 |
|--|----|----------|---------------|---------------|----------------|---------------|
| Library's proportion of the net pension liability (asset) | | .034378% | .046040% | .048898% | .048153% | .047829% |
| Library's proportionate share of the net pension liability (asset) | \$ | 9,399 | \$ 121,191 | \$ 100,706 | \$ (35,741) | \$ 212,282 |
| Library's covered-employee payroll | \$ | 194,536 | \$ 263,972 | \$ 286,693 | \$ 286,693 | \$ 296,866 |
| Library's proportionate share of the net pension liability (asset) as a percentage of its covered-employee payroll | | 48.31% | 45.91% | 35.13% | 13.54% | 72.20% |
| Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the total pension liability | 9 | 99.15% | 92.23% | 94.15% | 101.98% | 88.86% |

.

.

• This schedule is presented to illustrate the requirement to show information for 10 years. However, until a full 10-year trend is compiled, governments should present information for those years for which information is available.

1

!

.

SCHEDULE OF THE LIBRARY'S CONTRIBUTIONS PAROCHIAL EMPLOYEES' RETIREMENT SYSTEM OF LOUISIANA

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2019

| Contractually required contribution | \$ | <u>2015</u> 38,276 | \$ | <u>2016</u> 37,270 | \$ | <u>2017</u> 37,478 | \$ | <u>2018</u> 33,814 | \$ | 2019 33,395 |
|--|------------|-----------------------|-----------|-----------------------|-----------|-----------------------|-----------|-----------------------|-----------|------------------|
| Contributions in relation to the contractually required contribution | . <u> </u> | (38,276) | | (37,270) | | <u>(37,478</u>) | | (33,814) | | <u>(33,395</u>) |
| Contribution deficiency (excess) | <u>\$</u> | | <u>\$</u> | | <u>\$</u> | | <u>\$</u> | | <u>\$</u> | |
| Library's covered-employee payroll | \$ | 263,972 | \$ | 286,693 | \$ | 296,390 | \$ | 294,036 | \$ | 296,866 |
| Contributions as a percentage of covered-employee payroll | | 14.50% | | 13.00% | | 13.00% | | 11.50% | | 11.50% |

• This schedule is presented to illustrate the requirement to show information for 10 years. However, until a full 10-year trend is compiled, governments should present information for those years for which information is available.

SECTION IV OTHER INFORMATION

.

.

:

SCHEDULE OF COMPENSATION, REIMBURSEMENTS, BENEFITS, AND OTHER PAYMENTS TO AGENCY HEAD OR CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

AS OF AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2019

| Agency Head Name: | Amanda Taylor |
|---------------------------------|---------------------|
| Salary Benefits – retirement | \$ 84,226 10,703 |
| Total | <u>\$ 94,929</u> |

SECTION V REPORTS REQUIRED BY GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

.

•

.

.

,



209 N. Commerce St. Natchez, MS 39120 P. O. Box 1027 Natchez, MS 39121 Tel: 601-442-7411 Fax: 601-442-8551 2120 Forsythe Ave. Monroe, LA 71201 P. O. Box 4550 Monroe, LA 71211 Tel: 318-323-4481 Fax: 318-323-2188

www.silassimmons.com

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

Board of Control Concordia Parish Library Ferriday, Louisiana

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in *Government Auditing Standards* issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the governmental activities, the major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of Concordia Parish Library as of and for the year ended December 31, 2019, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise Concordia Parish Library's basic financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated March 25, 2020.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered Concordia Parish Library's internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of Concordia Parish Library's internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of Concordia Parish Library's internal control.

A *deficiency in internal control* exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A *material weakness* is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity's financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A *significant deficiency* is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of the internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Concordia Parish Library's financial statements are free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit and, accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under *Government Auditing Standards*.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with *Government Auditing Standards* in considering the entity's internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

Silas Simmons, UP

Natchez, Mississippi March 25, 2020

SECTION VI SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS

i i

•

i

.

;

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2019

Section I: Summary of Auditor's Reports

| 1. | Type of a | nuditor's report issued on the primary government financial statements: | |
|----|-----------|---|------------|
| | Governn | iental activities | Unmodified |
| 2. | Internal | control over financial reporting: | |
| | a. | Material weakness(es) identified? | No |
| | b. | Significant deficiency(ies) identified that are not considered to be material weaknesses? | No |
| 3. | Noncom | pliance material to the primary government financial statements? | No |

SCHEDULE OF PRIOR YEAR AUDIT FINDINGS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018

| | Fiscal Year | | | Planned Corrective |
|----------|-------------|-------------|----------------------|--------------------|
| | Finding | Description | Corrective | Action/Partial |
| | Initially | of | Action Taken | Corrective |
| Ref. No. | Occurred | Finding | (Yes, No, Partially) | Action Taken |

Section I – Internal Control and Compliance Material to the Financial Statements:

None

Section II - Internal Control and Compliance Material to Federal Awards:

None

Section III - Management Letter:

None

CURRENT YEAR AUDIT FINDINGS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2019

| | | | Name(s) of | Anticipated |
|---------|------------------------|----------------|---|-------------|
| | | Corrective | Contact | Completion |
| Ref. No | Description of Finding | Action Planned | <u> Person(s) </u> | Date |

Section I – Internal Control and Compliance Material to the Financial Statements:

None

Section II - Internal Control and Compliance Material to Federal Awards:

None

Section III - Management Letter:

None